
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 25, 2023 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 9:00 a.m. Garfield Township Hall – Cecil McNally, Chair, Grand Traverse 
County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 

2. ROLL CALL the member must announce his or her physical location by stating the county, city, 
township, or village and state from which he or she is attending the meeting remotely. 
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
 time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed 
fifteen (15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 Page 1 of 54



 

If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
 

(1)    Minutes of the 9/18/23 Special Board Meeting    1  
(2)       Minutes of the 9/28/23 Board Meeting     2 
(3)       Closed Minutes of the 9/28/23 Board Meeting     Handout 
(4)       Minutes of the 10/12/23 Board Meeting     3 
(5)  Resident Council Minutes       4 

   
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT – Cecil McNally       Verbal 

 
9. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  

 
A.  General Information        

(1)    Executive Search Update       Verbal 
(2)       Census Update        Verbal 
(3)    Second Quarter Overtime Report      5 
(4)       Foundation Financials       6 

   
B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – Dave Hautamaki    7 

 
C.  Business 

(1)    Financials         8 

 

D.  General Discussion 
(1)              

             
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting TBD - November 9, 2023 or November 30, 2023 
(2)     September Service Excellence Award     9  

      
10. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION 
(1)     

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 54



 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 18, 2023 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois   Board  
  Rose Coleman, Lindsey Dood, Diane Mallory, Darcey Gratton Staff  
  TJ Andrews        Commission 
ABSENT:  
 
GUESTS: Robert Long, Plante Moran 

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally at the Garfield Township 
Hall.    

 
First Public Comment – None    
 
County Liaison Report – TJ Andrews attended as the new Grand Traverse County Board of 
Commissioners (BOC) Liaison for the Pavilions.  Andrews stated she hopes to learn more about 
the sustainability plan going forward and shared the Pavilions is on the agenda for the next BOC 
meeting scheduled on September 20th to review the sustainability plan.   
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair McNally asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda.  Motion was made by LaPointe to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by 
Marios and carried unanimously.     
 
Strategic Planning & Budget Discussion and Approval  
 

Robert Long, Plante Moran – Long provided a handout on the sustainability planning 
report and projected a copy on the screen for all to review.  LaPointe providing a 
brief history on the county owned medical care facility. Long highlighted on the 
historical perspective on funding, process of sustainability actions, proforma 
assumptions and a summary of the financial impact.   
 
Andrews shared the need for more detail on history, finances and what the 
repayment plan looks like to provide to the County Commissioners at the 
presentation scheduled for September 20th.   
 
The board discussed the cut of fifteen full-time equivalent positions who will receive a 
severance per years of service with a minimum of two weeks and the maximum of 
twelve weeks.  Coleman shared six of the reductions have occurred and the 
remaining are aware, but staff are working to rearrange duties. Coleman announced 
the Director of Nursing has also submitted her resignation.  The board reviewed the 
these staff reductions had no impact on direct care. 

 
Medicaid Rate Letter – Coleman and Dood gave a brief review of the Medicaid rate 
letter provided in the packet and answered board member’s questions.   
 

Page 3 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
1



 

2 
 

Annual Survey Update – Marois requested for Coleman to review the findings of the Annual 
Survey.  Coleman stated there is no formal report with listed citations but highlighted the 
preliminary concerns received in the exit interview on September 14th.                   
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting September 28, 2023 
 

Second Public Comment  
Claudia Bruce 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:36 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 

Page 4 of 54



 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 28, 2023 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois      Board  
  Lindsey Dood, Diane Mallory, Darcey Gratto n         Staff  
  TJ Andrews           Commission 
ABESENT:  
         
GUESTS: Steve Wolock of Maddin Hauser (virtual) 
  Kate Klaus of Maddin Hauser (virtual)  

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:05 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally at the Garfield Township 
Hall.    

 
First Public Comment – none 
 
McNally announced Rose Coleman has tendered her resignation as CEO/Administrator 
effective immediately.  
 
Approval of Agenda – Board Chair McNally requested to remove (2) under Review and File 
due the minutes not ready for approval and will be added to the October 26th board meeting.  
McNally requested to add under Review and File (6) September 22, 2023 special board minutes 
and closed minutes.  McNally also requested to add under General Discussion (1) Interim CEO 
and next steps.  Motion was made by Marois to approve the agenda with presented changes, 
seconded by LaPointe and carried unanimously.   
      
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt 
with by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that 
any item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
discussion.  Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Minutes of the 08/31/23 Board Meeting 
(2)       Minutes of the 09/18/23 Board Meeting (removed) 
(3)       Minutes of the 09/19/23 Board Meeting 
(4)       Closed Minutes of the 09/19/23 Board Meeting 
(5)       Minutes of the 9/22/23 Board Meeting (added) 
(6)       Closed Minutes of the 9/22/23 Meeting (added) 
(7)       Resident Council Minutes  

  
Motion was made by Marois to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Motion seconded 
by LaPointe and carried unanimously. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – none 
 

Page 5 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
2



 

2 
 

County Liaison Report – Andrews shared the County Board of Commissioners (BOC) ad hoc 
committee meeting is scheduled for September 29th at the Pavilions for a tour and followed by 
their first committee meeting.  The committee plans to meet again in October to interview 
applicants to prepare for LaPointe’s term expiring on October 31st.  Lapointe has chosen not to 
reapply.  A new DHHS board member will begin their term on November 1, 2023.  
  
Chairman Report – McNally thanked the staff on behalf of the board for all their efforts during 
the recent changes over the last month. 
 
Strategic Planning Update – Dood reviewed ongoing discussions with Rob Long from Plante 
Moran and shared the key topics of completing operational changes that included increasing 
census, cottage rates and eliminating positions.  Dood stated a new score card is being 
developed to keep track of key elements going forward.  Dood shared Point Click Care system 
went live and will generate new financial reports to share with the board.  Dood noted the 
elimination of the fifteen positions is not completed.  Dood shared the current census of 144 and 
shared updates on progress with the strategic plan. Andrews shared her appreciation to all 
involved in the presentation to the BOC on September 20th and stated it helped achieve 
rebuilding the relationship between DHHS and the BOC.  Andrews recommended inviting Rob 
Long back to the DHHS October 26th meeting due to him being a key stakeholder in all of the 
changes discussed. 
 
Census – The board discussed this agenda item under Strategic Planning Update. 
 
Satisfaction Survey Questions - The Satisfaction survey questions were provided in the 
packet per the request from Marois during the August 31 meeting.   
 
McNally inquired about the state survey.  Dood shared the survey results were received on 
September 27th and shared a verbal summary of sixteen citations that ranged from Level D-F. 
Discussed.  The prior year the Pavilions had twenty-two citations.  The life Safety Code survey 
had eleven.  Marois requested for the detailed report to be provided at the next board meeting.  
Dood will provide a copy to the board.   
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – McNally reviewed the monthly report for August.  Dood and 
Mallory answered board members’ questions. 
 
Financial Report – Dood presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for August 2023 and answered board member’s questions.  Dood reviewed the progress of 
three financial building projects that include the employee retention credit, recovery of monies 
from the State of Michigan, and repayment from PACE North.  Motion made by Marois to accept 
the financial operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by LaPointe and carried 
unanimously.    
 
Recess 10:11- 10:16am 
 
Interim CEO and Next Steps – The board discussed the process of an Administrator search.  
Motion made by McNally to appoint Marois to search out options for an Interim 
CEO/Administrator and allow the ability to negotiate and sign a contract for interim and long-
term Administrator.  Motion made by McNally for Marois to search for interim and long-term 
Administrator options.  Motion seconded by Marois and carried unanimously.   
 

Page 6 of 54



 

3 
 

Motion made by LaPointe to appoint Finance Director, Lindsey Dood as acting CEO pending 
appointment of an interim Administrator.  Motion seconded by McNally and carried unanimously.   
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting October 12, 2023  
(2) August Service Excellence Award 

 
Marois requested to have Dood remove former Administrator Rose Coleman as signer on all 
accounts and shared she was advised that the State would need to be informed of Coleman’s 
resignation and that the board is in the process for finding an Administrator.  McNally shared he 
was told by legal counsel that the Pavilions would be compliant while searching for Interim 
Administrator.  Andrews suggested having that statement in writing from the attorney.   
 
Second Public Comment  
Linda Pepper 
 
Wolock in at 10:30 am 
Andrews, Mallory and Gratton out 10:30am 
 
Motion was made by Marois seconded by LaPointe to go into Closed Session at 10:35 am for 
the purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult 
with our attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, Mary 
John Williams v Grand Traverse Pavilions and the Grand Traverse County Health and Human 
Services Board. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Motion was made by Marois to come out of Closed Session at 11:00 am, seconded by 
LaPointe.  Motion carried. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:00 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 7 of 54



 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 12, 2023 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois      Board  
  Dave Hautamaki, Lindsey Dood, Diane Mallory, Darcey Gratton    Staff  
  TJ Andrews           Commission 
ABESENT:  
         
GUESTS:   

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 1:00 pm by Board Chair Cecil McNally at the Garfield Township 
Hall.    

 
First Public Comment  
Claudia Bruce 
 
County Liaison Report – Andrews shared discussions of the most recent County Board of 
Commissioner (BOC) meetings with highlighting on the recent ad hoc committee with County 
Commissioners Rob Henchel, Brad Nelson and TJ Andrews.  The ad hoc committee met for the 
first time at the Pavilions on September 29th.  Finance Director Lindsey Dood provided a in 
depth tour of the building with their meeting immediately following the tour.  Andrews reported 
the committee met again to interview Harold Lasser and Haider Kazim for a seat on the DHHS 
Board who will replace Gordie LaPointe on November 1, 2023.  The committee unanimously 
agreed to recommend appointing Haider Kazim to the DHHS Board at the next BOC meeting.  
The committee plans to meet again on October 16th at the Pavilions.  Andrews noted that the 
DHHS Board and the public are always invited to attend.   
 
Approval of Agenda – Board Chair McNally requested to add under General Discussion (1) 
Search for Permanent CEO/Administrator, (2) Resolution 2023-3 Authorization Representative, 
and (3) Resolution 2023-4 Signing of Separation Agreement.  Motion was made by Lapointe to 
approve the agenda with presented changes, seconded by Marois and carried unanimously.   
 
Introduction – McNally introduced Interim CEO/Administrator Dave Hautamaki.  Hautamaki 
gave a review of his work history. 
    
Chairman Report – McNally thanked Foundation President Deb Jackson for the article she 
wrote in the record eagle on the history and benefits of the Pavilions.  McNally also 
acknowledged staff for all of their hard work through the last month and to Lindsey Dood for 
stepping in as acting CEO during the search for the new interim CEO/Administrator.   
 
Life Safety Code Survey – Coggins reviewed the Life Safety Code survey of eleven citations. 
 
Coggins out 1:44pm 
 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs – Annual Survey – Packard reviewed the 
annual survey of sixteen citations.  Marois asked Andrews what the BOC would like to see 

Page 8 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
3



 

2 
 

regarding the survey to stay informed.  Andrews suggested a small summary explaining the 
severity and where to find the full description.   
 
Andrews out 2:20pm 
 
The Board requested for a summary of the survey to be provided to the BOC by their first 
meeting in November.   
 
Census Update – Dood shared that he is working through responses on each admission 
referrals with Hautamaki. 
 
Packard out 2:44pm 
 
Staffing Update – Dood updated the board that the reduction for all fifteen full time equivalent 
employees have been completed.  Marois stated she wanted to make clear that no direct care 
staff were let go. 
 
Cottage Update – Dood reviewed four residents have discharged from the cottages due to the 
rate changes and services.  Six more are planning to move out and five more are considering 
moving.  Discussed. 
 
Budget Development Process 2024 – Dood asked of the board for some guidance of what 
they would like to see on the Budget for 2024.  Marois requested a comparison by category.  
The Board discussed more detail for their review. 
 
Draft Operational Score Card – Dood stated he wasn’t able to provide a handout yet as stated 
on the agenda but shared that the score card will be impacting the financial statements.  The 
score card will be provided to the BOC ad hoc committee meeting on October 16th for first 
review. 
 
Resolution 2023-3 Authorized Representative – McNally reviewed a resolution to change the 
authority to sign for Grand Traverse Pavilions for daily operations.  Motion was made by 
LaPointe to approve Resolution 2023-3 as presented authorizing Interim CEO/Administrator 
David Hautamaki as the authorized power with full authority to sign paperwork on behalf of the 
Board for daily operations of the Grand Traverse Pavilions.  Motion seconded by Marois and 
carried unanimously.  
 
Roll Call Vote: McNally-yes, LaPointe-yes, Marois-yes 
 
Resolution 2023-4 Signing of Separation Agreement – McNally requested a resolution for 
the Board to authorize him as Board Chair, to sign a separation agreement with the former 
CEO/Administrator Rose Coleman, on behalf of the DHHS Board. Motion was made by Marois 
to authorize McNally to sign a separation agreement with former CEO/Administrator Rose 
Coleman, on behalf of the DHHS Board.  Motion seconded by LaPointe and carried 
unanimously. 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting October 26, 2023  
(2) Marois requested going back to meeting one meeting a month.  The full board 

agreed however no meetings have been formally cancelled yet. 
 

Page 9 of 54



 

3 
 

Second Public Comment  
Claudia Bruce 
 
Meeting adjourned at 3:12 pm 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 10 of 54



BIRCH RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
September 27, 2023 

 
The Birch September 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council 
was called to order at 3:00pm in the Birch Activity Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present were introduced: 
Seven residents attended 
    
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Traci Williams, RN, ADON – Birch Pavilion 
 
The August 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance on 09/26/2023, per prior 
resident suggestion and request; the minutes were also offered to everyone in 
attendance at the meeting held this day.   
 
Old Business: 
Kari provided the following follow-up from the August meeting: 

- X carpet was deep cleaned. X window was washed on the inside. 
- Traci met with X and X regarding the call lights and had good discussions. 
- Traci & Sarah both met with X regarding her concerns of another resident yelling 

or moaning throughout the day and night. 
- Name That Tune activity was held on 09/19/2023. 
- Fall Color Drives are planned for October and Christmas Light Drives are 

planned for December 2023. 
 
New Business: 
Kari made the following announcements:  
Special Event Activities for October 

• Wednesday October 4: Music Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green – 10:30am – 
Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 5: Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Cherry 
Activity Room 

• Friday October 6: Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Monday October 9: Halloween Sign Painting – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

• Tuesday October 17: On the Go! Root Beer & Coke Floats – 2:30pm – Hallways 

• Wednesday October 18: Prayers & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 19: Feather Duster Balloon Ball Fun with GTP Kids – Multi-
Purpose Room 

Page 11 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
4



• Friday October 20: Pizza Hut Lunch Order-In – 12:30pm - Multi-Purpose Room 

• Tuesday October 24: Pumpkin Decorating – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

• Thursday October 26: Pumpkin Puffy Painting with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Friday October 27: Pumpkin Judging, Treats & showing of It’s The Great 
Pumpkin, Charlie Brown – 10:00am – Aspen Main Dining Room & Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Friday October 27: Orange Soda Pumpkin Floats – 3:00pm – Birch Main Dining 
Room  

• Saturday October 28: Bag Up Candy for Halloween – 2:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Monday October 30: Decorate Cookies for Halloween – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: Halloween Snacks & Movie – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: GTP Kids Halloween Trick-o-Treat – 3:00pm-5:00pm – 
Main Street Hallways 

 
Outings to sign-up for: 
Tuesday October 10: Fall Color Drive (resident suggested, X, in August  

2023); Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
 
Thursday October 12: Fall Color Drive; Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately  

12:30pm 
 
Friday October 13: Fall Color Drive; Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately  

12:30pm 
 
Wednesday October 18: Lunch & Ice Cream at Dairy Queen (resident suggested, X, in 
August 2023); Board bus at 11:00am, return approximately 2:30pm 
 
Friday October 27: Shopping at Merchandise Outlet (resident suggested, X, in August 
2023); Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as well as 
an alternate outing if they desired. 
 
Fall Themed Clothes Days 
Friday October 6 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 13 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 20 & Saturday October 21 – MSU / UofM  
Friday October 27 – Halloween T-shirt 
Tuesday October 31 – Halloween T-shirt / costume 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 

Page 12 of 54



Kari discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are reviewed 
during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, and today 
we will be reviewing Building. 
 
Building:  
I would like to ask a few questions about the building, including both your bedroom and 
other rooms you use such as the dining room and activity rooms. 

• Is the air temperature comfortable for you? 
Residents at the meeting all said “yes.” 
 

• Is there good air circulation or does it get stuffy in these rooms? 
One resident present said, “Sometimes it is little stuffy not bad.” 
 

• What do you think about the noise level here? During the day is it generally quiet or 
noisy? During the night is it generally quiet or noisy? 
Two residents present said, “It is generally quiet during the day.” All residents present 
agreed and said, “It is quiet at night.” 
 

• Do you have the right amount of lighting in your room to read or do whatever you want 
to do? 
One resident said, “The light in my room is too bright at times.” 
 

• How is the lighting in the dining room and activity rooms? 
One resident said and others agreed with this resident, “It gets to bring in the dining 
room at dinner time with the sunlight coming through the windows, even with the blinds 
closed.” 
 

• Do you ever see insects or rodents in the building? 
All residents present agreed and said, “No.” 
 

• Is your call light put within reach in your room at all times? 
All residents present agreed and said, “Yes.” 
 

• How do staff respond to call lights? 
All residents present nodded their heads ‘yes;’ no verbal responses were given. 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- It is good and plentiful. I am getting more than enough to eat with each of my 
meals. 

X: 
- I loved the clam chowder soup. Other soups are too thin or not thick enough like 

they should be. 

Page 13 of 54



- I like the scrambled eggs with no ham, and the thinner and crispier bacon is 
better than the thick bacon in my opinion. 

X: 
- The vegetable soup is good with or without a good hamburger or beef in it. 

X: 
- I would like to see and have carrots and peas mixed together on the menu. 

 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
All residents present did not have verbalize any comments, suggestions or concerns.  
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  

- Please see comment in the topic of the Resident Group Interview Questions – 
Building. 

 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- I am always satisfied. 
X: 

- They check on me during the day and at night which is good, I like that. 
X: 

- They are good. They help me with my coffee, I just wish we had a Starbucks 
here. 

 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- It is good. 
X: 

- I don’t need it. 
X: 

- I’m very satisfied. 
X: 

- There are times were we just have to wait our turn. 
 
 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              

Page 14 of 54



X: 
- If you want or need a second shower, all you have to do is ask. 

X and X both said: 
- Mine is good. 

X: 
- All is good, and my shower was fixed and no more issues. Thank you. 

 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Birch Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Please see comment in the topic of the Resident Group Interview Questions – 
Building. 

 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
X: 

- I would like to make a soup for everyone to try. Could we have a day where we 
make soup for everyone to try? 

Kari told X and all residents present that she would love to plan this activity with all 
of them to do in October or November. X replied, “Come and see me for recipes. I 
have some I can share with you.” 

 
The next Birch Resident Council meeting will be held on Wednesday October 25, 2023, 
at 3:00pm in the Birch Activity Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the September 2023 minutes, and no one volunteered or said they would like to do this. 
The Birch Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 4:00pm by X, seconded by X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________   
Kari Belanger, CTRS     
Recreational Therapist                
 
________________________________   
Traci Williams, RN      
Birch Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
 
 

Page 15 of 54



CHERRY RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
September 28, 2023 

 
The Cherry September 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council 
was called to order at 10:41am in the Cherry Activity Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present were introduced: 
9 residents attended 
    
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Marta Pratt, RN, ADON – Cherry Pavilion 
Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW – Cherry Pavilion Social Work 
 
The August 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance on 09/27/2023 per prior 
resident suggestion and request; the minutes were also offered to everyone in 
attendance at the meeting held this day.  X made a motion to accept the August 2023 
minutes as written; X seconded the motion. 
 
Old Business: 
Kari provided the following follow-up: 

- X suggestion of having Dominic Fortuna at the Concerts on the Lawn next 
summer was passed along to the Marketing/Public Relations team at the 
Pavilions. 

 
New Business: 
Special Event Activities for October 

• Wednesday October 4: Music Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green – 10:30am – 
Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 5: Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Cherry 
Activity Room 

• Friday October 6: Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Monday October 9: Halloween Sign Painting – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

• Tuesday October 17: On the Go! Root Beer & Coke Floats – 2:30pm – Hallways 

• Wednesday October 18: Prayers & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 19: Feather Duster Balloon Ball Fun with GTP Kids – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Friday October 20: Pizza Hut Lunch Order-In – 12:30pm - Multi-Purpose Room 

• Tuesday October 24: Pumpkin Decorating – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

Page 16 of 54



• Thursday October 26: Pumpkin Puffy Painting with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Friday October 27: Pumpkin Judging, Treats & showing of It’s The Great 
Pumpkin, Charlie Brown – 10:00am – Aspen Main Dining Room & Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Friday October 27: Orange Soda Pumpkin Floats – 3:00pm – Birch Main Dining 
Room  

• Saturday October 28: Bag Up Candy for Halloween – 2:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Monday October 30: Decorate Cookies for Halloween – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: Halloween Snacks & Movie – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: GTP Kids Halloween Trick-o-Treat – 3:00pm-5:00pm – 
Main Street Hallways 

 
Outings to sign-up for: 
Tuesday October 10: Fall Color Drive (resident suggested, X, in August  

2023); Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
  
Thursday October 12: Fall Color Drive; Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately  

12:30pm 
  
Friday October 13: Fall Color Drive; Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately  

12:30pm 
 
Wednesday October 18: Lunch & Ice Cream at Dairy Queen (resident suggested, X, in 
August 2023); Board bus at 11:00am, return approximately 2:30pm 
 
Friday October 27: Shopping at Merchandise Outlet (resident suggested, X, in August 
2023); Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as well as 
an alternate outing if they desired. 
 
Fall Themed Clothes Days 
Friday October 6 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 13 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 20 & Saturday October 21 – MSU / UofM  
Friday October 27 – Halloween T-shirt 
Tuesday October 31 – Halloween T-shirt / costume 
 
 
 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 

Page 17 of 54



Kari discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are reviewed 
during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, and today 
we will be reviewing Building. 
 
Building:  
I would like to ask a few questions about the building, including both your bedroom and 
other rooms you use such as the dining room and activity rooms. 

• Is the air temperature comfortable for you? 
All residents present said, “yes.” 
 

• Is there good air circulation or does it get stuffy in these rooms? 
One resident said, “My room is always nice, never stuffy.” 
 

• What do you think about the noise level here? During the day is it generally quiet or 
noisy? During the night is it generally quiet or noisy? 
All residents present agreed and said that it is quiet during the day and at night. 
 

• Do you have the right amount of lighting in your room to read or do whatever you want 
to do? 
All residents present said, “yes.” One resident said, “I color a lot when I’m in my room. 
It is good.” 
 

• How is the lighting in the dining room and activity rooms? 
All residents present said, “good.” 
 

• Do you ever see insects or rodents in the building? 
One resident said, “Once a month the housekeeper squishes a spider in my room.” 
 

• Is your call light put within reach in your room at all times? 
All residents present said, “yes.” 
 

• How do staff respond to call lights? 
One resident said, “Depends on what time of day it is. If it’s during a meal, it is going to 
be a long time.” Another resident said, “Sometimes they answer it immediately, and 
sometimes it takes forever.” 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- I haven’t had a hot meal since I don’t know when. It is still cold, and they aren’t 
using the Styrofoam anymore. The soup is cold and tasteless too. 

- They have been offering me snacks throughout the day. But I know other units 
come to our pantry and take snacks from us, then we don’t have anything. 

- I would like to have fresh grapes and apples for a snack. 
 

Page 18 of 54



X: 
- The soup is cold, and the coffee is either really hot or really cold. 
- I would like to have ice cream at night for a snack and many times I am told that 

it is not available. Why is that? 
X: 

- I would like to see dessert served with the dinner meal. 
- The turkey, dressing and cranberry sauce meal was delicious. 
- I am not being offered a snack at night. 

X: 
- I am getting things that I didn’t order, and I’m not getting things that I did order. 

The coffee is medium warm, and the soup is cold. 
- I would like to see an assortment of snacks like they used to offer us. 

X: 
- I’m a soup person, and the soups are brothy and tasteless. 
- I would like to see fresh fruit offered as a snack. 

X: 
- They need to make the coffee stronger. 

 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- Michelle (housekeeper) is doing great. She works really hard at keeping 
everything nice and clean. 

X: 
- Laundy is a pain in the ass. They tore up 2 pairs of shorts, and a t-shirt was torn 

in half, and they didn’t repair any of it. 
X: 

- Another pair of my pants came back to me bleached from this time we were in 
isolation. Why does that happen? 

Marta and Emily to meet with X and X individually regarding their laundry concerns 
and will provide follow-up. 

 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  

- Please see comment in the topic of the Resident Group Interview Questions – 
Building. 

 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

- Some of the nurses are in such a hurry that they don’t take the time to talk or visit 
with me. 

Page 19 of 54



- I would like to clone Beth my CNA; she is so good to me. 
X: 

- Tara and Krissie are wonderful! 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Please see comment in the topic of the Resident Group Interview Questions – 
Building. 
 

6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              
All residents present nodded their heads yes, and a couple of residents commented 
“good.” 
 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Cherry Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Please see comment in the topic of the Resident Group Interview Questions – 
Building. 

 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
X: Can the staff shut the bathroom door at night? The light is so bright and it  

wakes me up. 
X suggested: lunch at China Fair 
X suggested: The Butterfly House next summer. 

 
The next Cherry Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday October 26, 2023, 
at 10:30am in the Cherry Activity Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over and 
sign the September 2023 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Cherry 
Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:25am by X, seconded by X. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Kari Belanger, CTRS    X, Cherry Pavilion Resident 
Recreational Therapist                
 
 
________________________________   
Marta Pratt, RN      
Cherry Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing   

Page 20 of 54



DOGWOOD RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
September 27, 2023 

 
The Dogwood September 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident 
Council was called to order at 10:50 am in the Sunroom by Cindi Pobuda, Dogwood 
Social Worker. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting.   
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members who were present were introduced:  
Seven residents attended 
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Naomi Rode, RN, ADON – Dogwood Pavilion 
 
The August 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance and reviewed.  X made a 
motion to accept the August 2023 minutes as written; X seconded the motion. 
 
Old Business:  None.  
 
New Business: 
Linda made the following announcements: 
Special Event Activities for October 

• Wednesday October 4: Music Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green – 10:30am – 
Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 5: Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Cherry 
Activity Room 

• Friday October 6: Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Monday October 9: Halloween Sign Painting – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

• Tuesday October 17: On the Go! Root Beer & Coke Floats – 2:30pm – Hallways 

• Wednesday October 18: Prayers & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 19: Feather Duster Balloon Ball Fun with GTP Kids – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Friday October 20: Pizza Hut Lunch Order-In – 12:30pm - Multi-Purpose Room 

• Tuesday October 24: Pumpkin Decorating – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

• Thursday October 26: Pumpkin Puffy Painting with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Friday October 27: Pumpkin Judging, Treats & showing of It’s The Great 
Pumpkin, Charlie Brown – 10:00am – Aspen Main Dining Room & Multi-Purpose 
Room 

Page 21 of 54



• Friday October 27: Orange Soda Pumpkin Floats – 3:00pm – Birch Main Dining 
Room  

• Saturday October 28: Bag Up Candy for Halloween – 2:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Monday October 30: Decorate Cookies for Halloween – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: Halloween Snacks & Movie – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: GTP Kids Halloween Trick-o-Treat – 3:00pm-5:00pm – 
Main Street Hallways 

 
Outings to sign-up for: 
Tuesday October 10: Fall Color Drive 
 Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
 
Thursday October 12: Fall Color Drive 

Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately 12:30pm 
 
Friday October 13: Fall Color Drive 

Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately 12:30pm 
 
Wednesday October 18: Lunch & Ice Cream at Dairy Queen 
 Board bus at 11:00am, return approximately 2:30pm 
 (resident suggested, X, in August 2023) 
 
Friday October 27: Shopping at Merchandise Outlet 
 Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
 (resident suggested, X, in August 2023) 
 
Fall Themed Clothes Days 
Friday October 6 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 13 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 20 & Saturday October 21 – MSU / UofM  
Friday October 27 – Halloween T-shirt 
Tuesday October 31 – Halloween T-shirt / costume 
 
Linda asked for ideas for future activities/outings.  X suggested a Chinese food outing. 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Cindi discussed with the group that of the twelve resident rights that are reviewed in the 
group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, today we will be 
reviewing the building. 
 
Building:  
X stated, “I would like to ask a few questions about the building, including both your 
bedroom and other rooms you use such as the dining room and activity rooms.” 

Page 22 of 54



• Is the air temperature comfortable for you?  X and X said, “Yes.”  X said, “Too warm.”   

• Is there good air circulation or does it get stuffy in these rooms?  X said, “Stuffy.”  X 
said, “Okay.” 

• What do you think about the noise level here? During the day is it generally quiet or 
noisy? During the night is it generally quiet or noisy?  X and X said it is quiet both 
morning and night. 

• Do you have the right amount of lighting in your room to read or do whatever you want 
to do?  X and X both said, “Yes.” 

• How is the lighting in the dining room and activity rooms?  X said, “Excellent.”  X said, 
“Sometimes too bright.” 

• Do you ever see insects or rodents in the building?  X and X said, “No.” 

• Is your call light always put within reach in your room?  X, X, and X said, “Yes.”  X 
said, “Yes, or she gets it herself.” 

• How do staff respond to call lights?  X said, “It can get close waiting for the bathroom.  
I need patience.”  X said he waits too long to go to the bathroom. 

 
1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond regarding food temperature: 

• X said, “Warm enough.”  X said, “Okay.”  X said, “Good most of the time.”  X 
noted it should be better now that we are out of isolation and are not being 
served on disposables. 

The floor was opened for residents to respond regarding bedtime snacks: 

• X said, “Not always.”  X said, “Yes.”  X states, “I have my own stash.”  X wants a 
wider variety of snacks. 

 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond to the cleanliness of the facility:  All 
residents said, “Yes.” 
The floor was opened for residents to respond to the laundry being returned promptly:  

• X and X said, “Yes.”  X noted she has been missing a glove for her hand for a 

few days.  Staff will look for it. 

3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 

• The question was already answered. 
 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond to whether the nurses are taking good 
care of you. 

• All said, “Yes.” 

5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 

• The question was already answered. 

6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested.  
The floor was opened for residents to respond:     

• All said, “Yes.” 

Page 23 of 54



7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Dogwood Pavilion. 
The question was already answered. 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments:  None. 

 
The next Dogwood Resident Council meeting will be held on October 25, 2023, at 
10:45am in the Dogwood Sunroom. Cindi asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the September 2023 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Dogwood 
Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:36am by Diane, seconded by X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Linda Burton, CTRS              Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Naomi Rode, RN     X,  
Dogwood Assistant Director of Nursing              Dogwood Pavilion Resident 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24 of 54



ELM RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
September 28, 2023 

 
The Elm September 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council 
was called to order at 10:30am in the Elm Activity Room by Linda Burton. 
 
Members interviewed were: 
Ten residents attended  
  
Staff members were introduced: 
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Elm Pavilion Social Work 
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
 
New Business: 
Linda made the following announcements:  
Special Event Activities for October 

• Wednesday October 4: Music Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green – 10:30am – 
Multi-Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 5: Donuts & Cartoons with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Cherry 
Activity Room 

• Friday October 6: Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Monday October 9: Halloween Sign Painting – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

• Tuesday October 17: On the Go! Root Beer & Coke Floats – 2:30pm – Hallways 

• Wednesday October 18: Prayers & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Thursday October 19: Feather Duster Balloon Ball Fun with GTP Kids – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Friday October 20: Pizza Hut Lunch Order-In – 12:30pm - Multi-Purpose Room 

• Tuesday October 24: Pumpkin Decorating – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity Room 

• Thursday October 26: Pumpkin Puffy Painting with GTP Kids – 10:30am – Multi-
Purpose Room 

• Friday October 27: Pumpkin Judging, Treats & showing of It’s The Great 
Pumpkin, Charlie Brown – 10:00am – Aspen Main Dining Room & Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Friday October 27: Orange Soda Pumpkin Floats – 3:00pm – Birch Main Dining 
Room  

• Saturday October 28: Bag Up Candy for Halloween – 2:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Monday October 30: Decorate Cookies for Halloween – 3:00pm – Cherry Activity 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: Halloween Snacks & Movie – 10:30am – Multi-Purpose 
Room 

• Tuesday October 31: GTP Kids Halloween Trick-o-Treat – 3:00pm-5:00pm – 
Main Street Hallways 

 

Page 25 of 54



Outings to sign-up for: 
Tuesday October 10: Fall Color Drive 
 Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
 
Thursday October 12: Fall Color Drive 

Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately 12:30pm 
 
Friday October 13: Fall Color Drive 

Board bus at 10:00am, return approximately 12:30pm 
 
Wednesday October 18: Lunch & Ice Cream at Dairy Queen 
 Board bus at 11:00am, return approximately 2:30pm 
 (resident suggested, X, in August 2023) 
 
Friday October 27: Shopping at Merchandise Outlet 
 Board bus at 2:00pm, return approximately 4:30pm 
 (resident suggested, X, in August 2023) 
 
Fall Themed Clothes Days 
Friday October 6 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 13 – Flannel Friday 
Friday October 20 & Saturday October 21 – MSU / UofM  
Friday October 27 – Halloween T-shirt 
Tuesday October 31 – Halloween T-shirt / costume 
 
                         
Residents were asked for ideas for future activities: 
No ideas were mentioned. 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
1.  Asked the residents, “If you need help, do the staff come to help you?”  X and X said, 
“Yes.”  X said, “Yeah.”  X said, “If I need help, yes.” 
 
2.  Asked the residents if they were being offered an evening snack.  X said, “Yes.”  X 
and X said, “No.” 
 
3.  Asked the residents if the staff treat them with respect.  X, X, and X said, “Yes.” 
 
4.  Asked the residents if the food is good here.  X said, “I don’t eat here much.”  X said, 
“75-80%.”  X said, “Haven’t been here long, it’s okay.”  X said, “Not here for the summer 
months, has to wait.” 
 
5.  Asked the residents if their rooms are clean.  X said, “I clean, they don’t.”  Dorothy 
and X said, “Yes.” 
 

Page 26 of 54



6.  Asked the residents if their clothes came back from the laundry clean.  X and X said, 
“Yes.” 
 
7.  Asked the residents if the temperature in their rooms was comfortable.  X said, 
“Yes.” X said, “Okay.”  X said, “It’s chilly around the windowsill.”  X will let maintenance 
know. 
 
8.  Asked the residents if they had enough to do.  X and X said, “Yes.”  X said, “I think 
so.  X said, “We have a nice variety of activities.” 
 
9.  Asked the residents if there is anything we could do to make things better. X said, 
“Be considerate of your children and grandchildren.  A lot of nice people.” 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
No other concerns or complaints were noted.  The meeting adjourned at 11:05am. 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Linda Burton , CTRS    Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
 

Page 27 of 54



Grand Traverse Pavilions    

Quarterly Overtime Rolling Calendar Lookback

 

Department 1st Qtr 2023 2nd Qtr 2023 3rd Qtr 2023 4th Qtr 2022

Administration 95.07$          0.04% 306.35$      0.16% 126.77$        0.07% 166.52$        0.28%

Adult Day Services -$              0.00% -$            0.00% -$              0.00% -$              0.00%

Child Day Care 223.27$        0.41% 886.06$      1.92% 598.66$        1.30% 666.35$        0.17%

CNA 43,405.40$   3.85% 25,398.55$ 2.47% 37,997.32$   3.69% 41,733.97$   8.01%

CNA Training -$              0.00% -$            0.00% -$              0.00% -$              0.00%

Marketing/Foundation -$              0.00% -$            0.00% -$              0.00% -$              0.00%

Cottages 17,866.28$   4.35% 12,238.84$ 2.48% 11,916.94$   2.42% 15,864.83$   4.96%

Diversional Therapy 1,407.89$     1.45% 817.12$      0.96% 1,359.08$     1.60% 2,472.21$     2.94%

Financial Mgt. -$              0.00% -$            0.00% -$              0.00% -$              0.00%

Housekeeping 12,371.27$   6.87% 7,873.76$   4.89% 9,874.17$     6.14% 4,940.64$     10.95%

Human Resources 57.57$          0.08% 44.08$        0.07% 35.27$          0.06% 278.82$        0.05%

Human Services -$              0.00% 22.88$        0.05% 547.41$        1.13% 43.41$          0.12%

Laundry 4,699.24$     6.42% 2,164.39$   2.90% 2,060.82$     2.76% 3,191.14$     12.36%

LPN 9,053.98$     3.33% 7,077.04$   2.89% 16,240.14$   6.63% 10,691.19$   4.68%

Maintenance 6,704.67$     3.41% 6,187.72$   3.96% 5,703.83$     3.65% 7,284.02$     7.51%

Nursing Administration 3,667.34$     0.74% 3,596.28$   0.85% 2,846.26$     0.67% 1,465.88$     0.13%

RN 15,749.31$   2.98% 18,934.60$ 4.01% 26,888.34$   5.70% 15,372.63$   3.30%

Therapies - PT, OT 983.87$        0.35% 746.26$      0.28% 5,475.91$     2.08% 18.78$          0.07%

Totals 116,285.16$ 86,293.93$ 121,670.92$ 104,190.39$ 

% of payroll 3.64% 2.21% 3.06% 2.63%

 

Page 28 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
5



Page 29 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
6



Page 30 of 54



dgratton
Text Box
Handout

















 
 
 
October 23, 2023 
 
  
TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
FROM: David Hautamaki       
  CEO/Administrator       
       
RE:  September Report 
 
Throughout the month of September we had 48 admissions/re-admissions and 51 
discharges.  Two Rehab resident transferred upstairs for long term care. 
 
The Wellness Center saw the following patients this month:  Medicare A: 34; Medicare 
Advantage Skilled: 23; Medicare B: Outpatient: 43; Medicare B: Inpatient: 32; Medicare 
Advantage B: Outpatient 13; Inpatient 13 ;Private Insurance: Outpatient: 21; Private 
Insurance: Inpatient:1; Work compensation: Outpatient: 0; Private pay: Outpatient: 1; 
Private pay: Inpatient: 0.  
 
On September 1, The Wellness center transitioned from MyUnity to NetHealth 
Electronic Medical Records Software. 
 
For the cottages, in the month of September there was 1 admission, 2 in-house 
transfers, and 2 discharges.  
 
Kari Belanger and Linda Burton, Recreational Therapists, completed a total of 40 video 
chats over FaceTime or Google Duo.   
 
Burton attended the 2023 Fall Conference for the Michigan Association of Activity 
Professions (MAAP) on 09/21-09/22/2023 at the Deer Lake Banquet Center in 
Clarkston, Michigan. 
 
Activities and special events that occurred in September included: Happy Hour; making 
& enjoying French fries and cinnamon roll bites (both using an air fryer); enjoying 
fresh/local Honeycrisp apples and caramel dip; playing various card games and Bingo; 
resident council meetings; Rosary and live streaming of various local church services; 
bird care; listening to and enjoying the piano talents of musician John Denner; music & 
fun with the GTP Daycare Kids; getting outdoors while the weather was still 
cooperating; weeding/watering the flower beds; and watching movies, classic TV 
shows, college and NFL football games. 

Page 31 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
7



2 
 

 
During the month of September residents enjoyed outings to Turtle Creek Casino for 
gambling and lunch at Culvers. The shopping trip to the Dollar Tree did not take place 
due to lack of interest, and the shopping at Walmart outing was moved to October as 
we had residents recovering from feeling ill. 
 
The Concerts on the Lawn series concluded in September on Thursday 09/14 with 
Rebooted, featuring Judy Harrison. The weather was definitely on the cool side the 
evening of this performance which deterred many residents from going outside; only 14 
residents attended. 
 
Resident Council meetings were held on September 27 and 28 respectively.  
  
Recruitment is underway for the following open positions: CNAs; Universal Workers; 
Occupational Therapist and Childcare. 
 
Seven employees were hired in September: 3 Environmental Speech Language 
Pathologist.  We received 41 applications in September.   
   
In September we began a workforce reduction and realignment. 
 
In September, one employee referral was received.  
 
There was 1 new and no renewed unemployment claims filed in September.  We 
received confirmation of 1 successfully protested claim and were notified of 1 telephone 
hearing scheduled for September.  No charges were applied to our account for the 
second quarter of 2023.  
 
In the four weeks between August 27 – September 23, there were 188 CNA hours 
and 270 Recreational Therapist hours, and 23 Universal Worker hours worked in 
Activities.  

On September 6, Murielle Garbarino, Habitat Management Specialist from Northwest 
Michigan Invasive Species Network, was at the Pavilions to treat the Japanese 
Knotweed that is growing in our exterior Aspen courtyard and near Willow cottage.  
Japanese Knotweed is an extremely fast growing invasive species that will kill native 
plants if not treated properly. 

On September 7, Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director and Cati Kujawski, 
Environmental Services Manager, met with Apryl Smith of the WorxHub, via a Teams 
meeting, to discuss our plans to go live with the new work order software. 
 
On September 8, Coggins and Kujawski, met with the leadership from Northwest 
Education Services to discuss their students working here to teach them life skills in 
housekeeping, laundry, and cottage activities. 
 
On September 11 and 12, Coggins and Kujawski met with Randy Davis and Chris 
Wendt, Fire Safety Inspectors for the state of Michigan, for our annual life safety survey. 
On September 12, Coggins, Kujawski, and Rose Coleman, CEO/Administrator, met with 
Davis and Wendt for the exit meeting for the life safety survey. There were some 

Page 32 of 54



3 
 

concerns, noted, and we started the corrections on those concerns immediately. On 
September 27, Coggins received the 2567 report from the fire marshal with citations 
from the Emergency Preparedness and Life Safety surveys.  There was a total of 11 
citations.  Of the 11 citations, 7 were either corrected or in process of correction by the 
time we received the survey. 
 
On September 21, The ES department went live with the WorxHub work order software.  
 
On September 27, Coggins met with Tim Sheahan of Hartford Steam Boiler, to perform 
the state boiler inspection on boilers at all three cottages.  There were no issues with 
any of the boilers inspected. 
 
On September 27, Coggins received the 2567 report from the fire marshal with citations 
from the Emergency Preparedness and Life Safety surveys.  There was a total of 11 
citations.  Of the 11 citations, 7 were either corrected or in process of correction by the 
time we received the survey. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 54



Page 34 of 54

dgratton
Text Box
8



Page 35 of 54



Page 36 of 54



Page 37 of 54



Page 38 of 54



Page 39 of 54



Page 40 of 54



Page 41 of 54



Page 42 of 54



Page 43 of 54



Page 44 of 54



Page 45 of 54



Page 46 of 54



Page 47 of 54



Page 48 of 54



Page 49 of 54



Page 50 of 54



Page 51 of 54



Page 52 of 54



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

September 2023 

  

Date: 09/05/2023 
Employee: Grace Reinhold 

Awarded for: Staying after and helping me finish our shift. Thank you! 
Position: Dietary Supervisor 

Nominated by: Selena Cripps 

  

Date: 09/05/2023 
Employee: Samantha Stinson 

Awarded for: Helping with an admission. 
Position: RN 

Nominated by: Daniel Newcomb 

  

Date: 09/11/2023 
Employee: Naomi Rode 

Awarded for: 

Helping on rehab and covering elm nursing shifts!  She doubled down this week 
over and over!  Thank you Naomi for always helping where you can and finding 
things to do that help without being asked. 

Position: ADON 
Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

  

Date: 09/11/2023 
Employee: Tina Kniss 

Awarded for: 
Being a rockstar and a HUGE help down on Rehab tonight. Thank you for all you 
do. The residents and your coworkers appreciate you! 

Position: LPN 
Nominated by: Mikki Popp 

  

Date: 09/18/2023 
Employee: Marion Porter 

Awarded for: 
Extremely helpful.  Just a joy to have as an employee.  Always a smile and 
happy to help, 5 star employee, always walked in promptly to help. 

Position:  CNA 
Nominated by: Laurie Tessin 

 
 

Page 53 of 54

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
9



 
 

Date: 09/25/23 
Employee: Carrie Delk 

Awarded for: Being so sweet, kind and patient while teaching me admissions. 
Position:  Admissions Coordinator 

Nominated by: Michaella Forbush 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 09/18/2023 
Employee: Catherine Kujawski 

Awarded for: 
Continued support of the Cottages when in great need, thanks for the 
promptness in sending resources when needed. (Deep Clean) Awesome work. 

Position: Environmental Services Manager 
Nominated by: Jeff Valentine 

Page 54 of 54


